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President’s Letter of Transmittal Financial Report 2013

November 7, 2013

Peggy Zoro, Chair 
Board of Trustees 
Western Washington University 
Bellingham, WA  98225

Dear Chair Zoro:

We are pleased to submit the Annual Financial Report of Western Washington University.  The accounts of WWU 
are maintained in accordance with policies and regulations established by Washington State and its Office of Financial 
Management.  This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and following 
the guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, 
based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.  Because the cost 
of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatement.

The Washington State Auditors’ Office has issued an unqualified (clean) opinion on the Western Washington University 
financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2013.  This opinion is included in the independent auditor’s report.

Management’s discussion and analysis, located at the front of the financial section of this report, provides a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statement.  Western Washington University is recognized 
nationwide as a premier public comprehensive university.  Western Washington University is the highest-ranking public, 
master’s-granting university in the Pacific Northwest, according to the 2013 U.S. News & World Report college rankings.  
Western’s national academic reputation, excellent faculty, as well as its prime location, make it an institution “in demand”, 
factors which will continue to help it weather the current economic challenges.

        Sincerely,

        

        Bruce Shepard 
        President

        

        Richard Van Den Hul 
        Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs
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Financial Report 2013Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Unaudited - See Accompanying Accountant’s Report

OVERVIEW 
The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of Western 
Washington University (WWU) for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. This discussion has been prepared by 
management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes which follow 
this section.

WWU is one of six public, four-year institutions of higher education in the state of Washington. WWU is governed 
by a Board of eight Trustees, which has broad responsibilities to supervise, coordinate, manage and regulate WWU 
as provided by State law.  Trustees are appointed by the Governor for a term of six years, except a student Trustee 
who is appointed to a one-year term.  

As a comprehensive regional university, WWU offers undergraduate and graduate degrees in over 160 academic 
programs in its eight colleges.  WWU is the highest-ranking public, master’s-granting university in the Pacific 
Northwest, according to the 2013 U.S. News & World Report college rankings.  U.S. News and World Report also 
placed Western on the 2013 list of Highly Ranked Universities that Operate Most Efficiently.

WWU was established in 1893 and currently has approximately 15,000 full-time and part-time students.  Located 
on the shores of Bellingham Bay with Mount Baker as its backdrop, Bellingham is the last major city before the 
Washington coastline meets the Canadian border.  The City of Bellingham, which serves as the county seat of 
Whatcom County, is at the center of a uniquely picturesque area offering a rich variety of recreational, cultural, 
educational and economic activities. WWU is the second largest employer in Whatcom County.

Using the Financial Statement 
WWU’s financial report includes the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Financial Statement.  The Statement of Net 
Position provides information about WWU at a moment in time, the June 30 fiscal year end. The Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows provide information about 
WWU’s activities and operations during the fiscal year. The financial statement, in conjunction with the Notes to the 
Financial Statement, provides a comprehensive way to assess WWU’s financial health.  

WWU’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
principles, which establish standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities.  WWU’s 
component unit, the Western Washington University Foundation (Foundation) is a separate legal entity and reports 
its financial results under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) principles.  The Foundation’s financial 
statements are reported separately within this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 
WWU’s overall financial position continued to improve in fiscal 2013, although at a slower pace than in recent fiscal years. 

Significant actions which occurred during the fiscal year include:

•	 Tuition	and	fees	increased	14%	in	2013	over	2012

•	 State	appropriation	decreased	for	fourth	year	straight,	by	7%	in	2013	over	2012

•	 Faculty	salaries	increased	4.25%,	first	increase	since	2008	

•	 Refunded	Housing	&	Dining	Bonds	with	net	present	value	savings	of	$871	thousand

•	 Increased	Scholarships	by	$1.5	million
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Unaudited - See Accompanying Accountant’s Report

Statement of Net Position 
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of WWU at the end of the last three fiscal years and 
report all assets and liabilities of WWU.

A summarized comparison of WWU’s assets, liabilities and net position as of June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, follows:

Assets 
Current assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, funds held with the State 
Treasurer,	and	accounts	receivable	from	students.	The	$6.9	million	decrease	(-8.9%)	in	current	assets	in	fiscal	2013	is	
primarily due to decreases in cash and cash equivalents and funds held with the State Treasurer offset by an increase 
in	accounts	receivable,	net.	The	$5.5	million	decrease	(-13.4%)	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	is	a	result	of	changing	
investment	strategy	to	a	larger	allocation	of	longer	duration	fixed	income	investments.		The	$5.6	million	decrease														
(-64.2%)	in	the	funds	with	the	State	Treasurer	is	attributable	to	spending	fiscal	2012	Certification	of	Participation	
(COP) proceeds for an energy savings capital project, along with an increase in spending Permanent funds for 
building	maintenance	and	classroom	and	lab	upgrades.	The	offsetting	$2.5	million	(51.4%)	increase	in	accounts	
receivable,	net	is	due	to	timing	of	tuition	due	dates	between	fiscal	year	end	2013	and	fiscal	year	end	2012.	The	$15.7	
million	(25.5%)	increase	in	total	current	assets	during	fiscal	2012	compared	to	fiscal	2011	is	primarily	due	to	an	
increase	of	$7.1	million	(20.8%)	in	current	cash	and	cash	equivalents	as	a	result	of	maturing	investments	coupled	
with	increases	of	$3.9	million	(79.4%)	in	Funds	with	the	State	Treasurer	and	$4.4	million	(27.2%)	in	short-term	
investments.	The	increase	in	Funds	with	the	State	Treasurer	is	attributable	to	$2.7	million	in	unspent	Certificate	of	
Participation (COP) funding to be used to fund an energy savings capital project during fiscal 2013. The increase in 
short-term investments is due to maturing investments at fiscal year-end.  

Noncurrent	assets	(excluding	capital	assets)	increased	during	fiscal	2013	by	$12.9	million	(27.2%)	primarily	due	to	
a	$14.3	million	increase	(42.9%)	in	investments,	as	the	investment	strategy	shifted	the	allocation	to	longer-term	
investments.	Noncurrent	assets	(excluding	capital	assets)	decreased	$5.4	million	(-10.3%)	when	comparing	fiscal	
2012 to fiscal 2011 due to changes in restricted cash and cash equivalents offset by changes in restricted and long-
term investments and the recording of a pledged gift from the Western Washington University Foundation (the 
Foundation).	The	decrease	of	$1.7	million	(-53.7%)	in	restricted	cash	and	cash	equivalents	is	due	to	spending	down	
the	remaining	$2.1	million	2009	bond	funds	paired	with	increases	in	restricted	cash	and	cash	equivalents	from	
the Student Recreation Center’s renewal and replacement fund and additional bond proceeds from the Revenue 
and Refunding Series 2012 issuance. During the annual fiscal 2013 financial statement audit of the Foundation, a 
component	unit	of	WWU,	it	was	discovered	that	an	unconditional	pledged	gift	of	$1.0	million	that	occurred	in	April	
2012 was not recognized by the Foundation in fiscal 2012 and as such was not recorded with WWU during fiscal 
2012. The purpose of the pledged gift is to provide resources for the design and construction of the Multipurpose 
Field project. Payments to WWU are scheduled over 8 years. The pledged gift is recorded at its noncurrent net 
present	value	of	$864,314	and	$909,216	for	fiscals	2013	and	2012,	respectively	with	the	discount	amortized	over	the	
life of the pledge. These resources are recorded as restricted net position.

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets

     Current assets $70,480 $77,396 $61,660

     Noncurrent assets 60,448 47,515 52,958

     Capital assets, net 441,496 442,253 435,638

                                   Total assets 572,424 567,164 550,256

Deferred outflows 1,798 1,644 1,317

Liabilities

     Current Liabilities 31,450 30,634 31,323

     Noncurrent Liabilities 84,919 85,777 83,337

                                   Total liabilities 116,369 116,411 114,660

Total net position $457,853 $452,397 $436,913
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Deferred outflows 
Deferred	outflows	increased	during	fiscal	2013	by	$154	thousand	to	$1.8	million	primarily	due	to	the	change	in	the	
loss on defeasance created by the advanced refunding of the Housing & Dining series 2003 Revenue and Refunding 
bonds.	The	$1.8	million	of	total	loss	on	defeasance	is	amortized	over	the	life	of	the	bonds	as	a	component	of	interest	
expense.	When	comparing	fiscal	2012	to	fiscal	2011,	deferred	outflows	increased	$327	thousand	due	to	the	current	
refunding in fiscal 2012 of the Wade King Recreation Center’s series 2002 Revenue Bonds.

Liabilities 
The	excess	of	current	assets	over	current	liabilities	of	$39.0	million	in	fiscal	2013	and	$46.7	million	in	fiscal	2012	
reflects the continuing ability of WWU to meet its short-term obligations with liquid or easily liquidated assets.  
Current liabilities typically fluctuate depending on the timing of Accounts Payable payments and the receipt of 
deposits	and	revenue	that	is	applicable	to	the	next	fiscal	year.		Current	liabilities	increased	$815thousand	(2.7%)	
when	comparing	fiscal	2013	to	fiscal	2012	primarily	due	to	a	$1.1	million	(11.2%)	increase	in	unearned	revenue	and	
deposits	payable,	offset	by	a	$477	thousand	(-4.8%)	decrease	in	accounts	payable	and	accrued	liabilities.	Current	
liabilities	decreased	$689	thousand	(-2.2%)	when	comparing	fiscal	2012	to	fiscal	2011	primarily	due	to	the	decrease	
in	accounts	payable	and	accrued	liabilities	of	$656	thousand	(-6.2%).	Unearned	revenues	increased	$835	thousand	
(12.8%)	and	$308	thousand	(4.9%)	in	fiscals	2013	and	2012,	respectively.	These	unearned	revenue	increases	are	
largely	attributable	to	a	16.0%	summer	session	undergraduate	tuition	increase,	a	13.4%	increase	in	Extended	
Education programs and the implementation of a specialized grant module in WWU’s financial system which 
allows for more accurate recording of unearned grant revenue.  During fiscal 2013, the current portion of bonds 
and	notes	payable	increased	$207	thousand	(6.4%)	due	to	the	addition	of	a	Certificate	of	Participation	(COP)	for	
the purchase of new computer hardware as well as scheduled principal payments. During fiscal 2013, the Housing 
and Dining System advanced refunded the existing Series 2003 Revenue and Refunding bonds with Series 2012 
Refunding Bonds. This bond series did not have a principal payment during fiscal 2013.  During fiscal 2012, the 
current	portion	of	bonds	and	notes	payable	decreased	$377	thousand	(-10.4%)	due	to	the	current	refunding	of	the	
Recreation Center’s revenue bonds series 2002 and the addition of a State COP to fund an energy savings capital 
project.	In	April	2012,	WWU	issued	Revenue	and	Refunding	Bonds	Series	2012	to	refund	the	Recreation	Center’s	
revenue bonds series 2002. The series 2012 bonds do not have a current portion due until fiscal 2015 as part of the 
debt service savings. 

Long-term	liabilities	decreased	$858	thousand	when	comparing	fiscal	2013	to	fiscal	2012	primarily	due	to	scheduled	
principal	payments	and	amortizations	in	the	amount	of	$2.9	million	offset	by	an	increase	of	$2.1	million	(40.7%)	
in the unfunded long-term net pension obligation to certain state employees based on the estimated State Actuarial 
valuation	of	the	plan.	Long-term	liabilities	increased	$2.4	million	(2.9%)	when	comparing	fiscal	2012	to	fiscal	2011	
due to a net increase in bonds and notes payable and a 
$1.3	million	(31.5%)	increase	in	unfunded	net	pension	
obligation. The net increase in bonds and notes payable 
includes	the	addition	of	a	$3.0	million	State	COP	to	
fund an energy savings capital project and net savings of 
$1.9	million	in	refunding	outstanding	Student	Recreation	
Center	bonds	offset	by	$1.1	million	in	additional	bond	
funds to be used for development of the Multipurpose 
Field	capital	project	in	fiscal	2013	and	2014.	

The Viability ratio measures one of the most basic 
determinants of clear financial health – the availability 
of expendable net position to cover debt should WWU 
need to settle its obligations as of the balance sheet date. 
A positive ratio indicates to what degree net position 
is available to cover long-term debt. A ratio of 1:1 or 
greater indicates sufficient expendable net position to 
satisfy debt obligations.
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Net Position 
The difference between total assets and total liabilities is net position, or equity.  The change in net position measures 
whether the overall financial condition has improved or deteriorated during the year. The net position is reported in 
the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets – WWU’s total investments in property, plant equipment, and infrastructure, net 
of accumulated depreciation and outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.

Restricted:

•	 Nonexpendable	consists	of	funds	on	which	the	donor	or	other	external	party	has	imposed	the	restriction	
that the corpus is not available for expenditures but for investment purposes only.

•	 Expendable	are	resources	which	WWU	is	legally	or	contractually	obligated	to	spend	in	accordance	with	
time or purpose restrictions placed upon them by donors or other external parties.

Unrestricted – All remaining funds available to the institution for any purpose, although these are often 
internally designated for specific purposes.

WWU’s net position as of June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Net	investment	in	capital	assets	increased	$1.2	million	(0.3%)	during	fiscal	2013	primarily	due	to	an	increase	in	capital	
assets	of	$23.5	million	offset	by	a	net	increase	of	$21.7	million	in	depreciation	and	a	decrease	of	$2.9	million	in	long-
term	debt.		Net	investment	in	capital	assets	increased	$4.0	million	(1.1%)	in	fiscal	2012	when	compared	to	fiscal	2011	
due to the completions of the Buchanan Towers addition and the Miller Hall renovation and increases to construction 
in	progress	for	various	new	capital	projects,	offset	by	an	increase	of	$856	thousand	(1.1%)	in	long-term	debt.	

Highlights of fiscal 2013 capital asset activities:

•	 Construction	in	process	increased	$12.0	million	primarily	due	to	$4.3	million	spent	on	the	Carver	Gym	renovation	
design,	$3.3	million	spent	on	classroom	and	laboratory	upgrades,	$2.8	million	spent	on	Fraser	Hall	lecture	rooms	
and	$2.8	million	spent	on	the	ESCO	project.

•	 Capital	improvements	to	buildings	increased	$6.3	million	primarily	due	to	completed	renovations	to	the	Ridgeway	
Beta residence hall.

•	 Capital	equipment	purchases	increased	$4.1	million	largely	due	to	WIFI	equipment	upgrades	in	the	residence	halls.

•	 Long-term	debt	used	to	purchase	capital	assets	decreased	$2.9	million	due	to	principal	payments	and	amortizations.

•	 Capital	assets	were	reduced	by	$2.6	million	due	to	certain	items	(including	library	publications	and	capital	master	
plan) that did not meet Western’s criteria for capitalization and as such were expensed.  

Restricted nonexpendable includes donations and matching State contributions for the purpose of establishing 
distinguished professorships and graduate fellowships. When comparing fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2012  
to fiscal 2011, there were no changes to restricted nonexpendable net position as no new additions to endowments 
were received. 

2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands)

Net Position

     Net investment in capitol assets $363,010 $361,803 $357,815

     Restricted:

                Nonexpendable 4,629 4,629 4,629

                Expendable 28,701 30,419 24,391

     Unrestriced 61,513 55,546 50,078

Total net position $457,853 $452,397 $436,913
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Restricted	expendable	net	position	decreased	1.7	million	(-5.6%)	during	fiscal	2013	primarily	due	to	increased	
spending of the Permanent Fund (Funds with the State Treasurer) on classroom and laboratory upgrades along with 
renovations	to	campus	buildings.	Restricted	expendable	increased	$6.0	million	(24.7%)	in	fiscal	2012	compared	to	
fiscal	2011,	primarily	due	to	a	$3.8	million	(79.4%)	increase	in	Funds	with	the	State	Treasurer	and	a	$1.2	million	
(9.3%)	increase	in	the	institutional	financial	aid	fund,	which	is	collected	as	a	part	of	tuition.	The	increase	in	Funds	
with the State Treasurer is primarily due to funds held on behalf of WWU to fund a capital energy savings project. 
In	addition,	the	Foundation	made	a	$1.0	million	multi-year	unconditional	pledged	gift,	which	is	recorded	at	its	
net	present	value	of	$959,216.	This	fiscal	2012	pledge	was	discovered	during	the	Foundation’s	fiscal	2013	financial	
statement audit.

Unrestricted	net	position	increased	$6.0	million	(10.7%)	in	fiscal	2013	primarily	due	to	increases	in	tuition	and	fees.	
Unrestricted	increased	$5.5	million	(10.9%)	when	comparing	fiscal	2012	to	fiscal	2011	due	to	increases	in	tuition	and	
fees, Housing & Dining capital reserves, and administrative overhead revenue generated by the Carver Gym project.  

The Primary Reserve ratio measures the financial strength of WWU by comparing expendable net position to total 
expenses.	A	ratio	of	.40	or	better	is	advisable	to	give	the	institution	the	flexibility	to	transform	the	enterprise.	This	
represents WWU’s ability to carry on a reasonable level of activities and manage modest unforeseen adverse financial 
events.		It	is	important	to	note	that	if	a	catastrophic	event	were	to	happen,	the	normal	revenue	cycles	would	be	
interrupted and this reserve would be depleted at a much faster rate due to the need to address the event expenses at 
levels above the normal operating expense.
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Capital Assets and Related Debt 
During	fiscal	2013	and	fiscal	2012,	$18.3	million	and	$16.7	million	(excluding	library	materials	and	equipment)	
respectively,	were	expended	on	capital	improvements	compared	to	$35.8	million	in	fiscal	2011.		Of	the	$18.3	million	
in	capital	improvements	during	fiscal	2013,	$4.3	million	on	the	design	of	Carver	Gym	renovations,	$3.3	million	was	
expended	on	classroom	and	laboratory	upgrades	$3.2	million	was	spent	on	academic	building	renewals,	$2.8	million	
on	energy	savings	and	$4.0	million	on	Housing	&	Dining	residence	facilities.		In	addition	to	the	$18.3	million,	the	
dining	contract	with	Aramark	provides	a	financial	commitment	up	to	$7.3	million	in	dining	area	improvements.	
During	fiscals	2013	and	2012,	the	financial	commitments	were	valued	at	$535	thousand	and	$4.3	million	in	
capitalized improvements, respectively. 

Specific projects completed or underway in fiscal 2013 include:

Carver Gymnasium Renovations The	estimated	$75.6	million	addition	of	41,977	square	feet	will	provide	additional	
general classroom seats as well as dedicated lab and instructional spaces that will allow the consolidation and growth 
of student activities and conferences will also be service in the refurbished 2,600 seat event space. State funding for 
this project was not achieved for the 2013-2015 biennium. Funding is anticipated during the 2015-2017 biennium.

Multipurpose Field		The	estimated	$6.3	million	project	will	create	a	fully	lighted	and	fenced	artificial	turf	play	field	
that	is	sized	for	regulation	soccer	and	will	serve	as	the	new	home	of	WWU’s	NCAA	Division	II	men’s	and	women’s	
soccer	teams.	It	also	will	be	an	important	resource	for	WWU’s	recreation	programs	and	intramurals	by	servicing	
the	growing	needs	of	the	intramural	and	sport	club	system.	This	project	is	partially	funded	by	$1.1	million	acquired	
through	the	fiscal	2012	Wade	King	Recreation	Center	bond	refunding	along	with	a	$1.0	million	unconditional	
pledged gift from the Foundation.

Classroom & Laboratory Upgrades WWU has maintained a continuous renovation program over many years to 
upgrade	General	University	classrooms	and	general	use	lab	spaces.	The	estimated	$4.9	million	program	is	vital	to	
the function of the campus and has ensured that General University learning space is up-to-date, offers a high level 
of relevant technology and is adaptable to accommodate various learning modalities. This project is funded using 
Permanent Funds and state capital appropriations.

Energy Services Performance Contract (ESCO)	The	estimated	$3.2	million	project	was	initiated	in	order	to	advance	
the University’s sustainability goals and reduce its carbon footprint. The project implemented 38 separate facility 
improvement measures in various academic and auxiliary buildings identified by an energy audit of WWU’s campus. 
The project includes lighting controls and energy efficient lamps. Also, additional insulation in attic spaces, upgrades 
to existing heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment controls and water conservation measures 
in 23 academic buildings, Wade King Student Recreation Center and four residence halls. WWU secured funding 
using	a	$3.0	million	Certificate	of	Participation.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present WWU’s results of operating and 
nonoperating	items	that	result	in	the	changes	in	net	position	for	the	year.		In	accordance	with	GASB	reporting	
principles, revenues and expenses are classified as operating or nonoperating.  

A condensed comparison of WWU’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 
2013, 2012 and 2011 follows:
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2013 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands)

Operating revenues $196,940 $182,100 $167,904

Operating expenses 255,965 235,518 244,230

      Operating loss (59,025) (53,418) (76,326)

State appropriations revenue 40,052 43,083 63,761

Other nonoperating revenues 16,460 14,468 16,355

Nonoperating expenses (3,653) (4,277) (4,061)

      (Loss) income before other revenues (6,166) (144) (271)

Other revenues 11,622 15,628 27,395

      Increase in net position 5,456 15,484 27,124

Net position, beginning of year 452,397 436,913 409,789

Net position, end of year $457,853 $452,397 $436,913

Primary Funding Sources 
WWU relies primarily on student tuition and fees and state appropriations as revenue sources to support operations.  
Tuition	revenue,	net	of	scholarship	allowances,	has	continued	to	grow,	increasing	$11.2	million	(11.2%)	and	$11.5	
million	(13.0%)	in	fiscal	2013	and	fiscal	2012,	respectively.	During	fiscal	2013,	WWU	provided	$25.8	million	in	
financial	aid	in	the	form	of	scholarship	allowances	that	offset	tuition	and	fees,	compared	to	$20.7	million	in	fiscal	
2012	and	$18.4	million	in	fiscal	2011.	

The Washington State Legislature provides the Board of Trustees with tuition setting authority for all student 
categories at WWU: resident undergraduate, non-resident undergraduate, resident graduate, and non-resident 
graduate.		Tuition	increased	16.0%	during	fiscals	2013	and	2012	and	14.0%	during	fiscal	2011	with	enrollment	
decreasing	slightly	to	an	average	annual	headcount	of	13,470	in	fiscal	2013	compared	to	13,513	in	fiscal	2012	and	
13,521 students in fiscal 2011.

During	fiscal	2013,	state	appropriations	used	for	operations	declined	$3.0	million	(-7.0%)	compared	to	a	decline	of	
$20.7	million	(-32.4%)	in	fiscal	2012.	The	decrease	during	fiscal	2013	is	due	to	a	slight	reduction	in	state	funding	
as the previous budget challenges leveled off.  The fiscal 2012 decrease is attributable to ongoing budget challenges 
at	the	state	level	that	resulted	in	a	reduction	of	$12.4	million	in	state	appropriations	to	WWU,	along	with	an	$8.3	
million reduction in capital appropriations used for operations as these capital expenditures are below WWU’s 
capitalization threshold.

Capital appropriations are recognized as revenue when expenditures are incurred on capital projects and WWU is 
entitled	to	receive	the	cash.	Capital	appropriations	increased	slightly	by	$1.5	million	during	fiscal	2013	although	
no	new	major	capital	projects	were	underway.		Capital	appropriations	decreased	$17.3	million	(-71.5%)	when	
comparing fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2011 as previously existing capital major projects had been completed. 

Other capital revenue is the revenue earned from the State of Washington Normal School Permanent Fund and 
capital	gifts/contributions	received.	The	decrease	of	$4.6	million	(-58.9%)	during	fiscal	2013	is	attributable	to	the	
reduced	Aramark	capital	contribution.	Aramark	has	agreed	to	provide	up	to	$7.3	million	in	funding	for	renovations	
and improvements to several dining areas at WWU. The majority of the improvements are reported as capitalized 
assets	on	the	Statement	of	Net	Position.	The	increase	of	$4.6	million	(141.1%)	in	fiscal	2012	is	due	to	a	gift	from	
the	Western	Washington	University	Foundation	of	$1.1	million	for	capital	improvements	to	the	women’s	softball	
field	along	with	a	capital	contribution	of	$4.3	million	from	Aramark,	offset	with	reduced	investment	earnings	on	the	
Permanent Fund. The capital contribution from Aramark is part of the dining services contract. 
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In	April	2012,	WWU	received	a	$1.0	million	unconditional	pledged	gift	from	the	Foundation	for	the	purpose	of	
design and construction of the Multipurpose Field project. The pledged gift is scheduled to have 8 annual payments. 
This gift is recorded at its present value, with the discount amortized over the term of the pledged period using the 
straight line method. During the fiscal 2013 financial statement audit of the Foundation, it was discovered that this 
unconditional pledged gift was not recognized by the Foundation and as such was not recorded with WWU during 
fiscal 2012 when it occurred. During fiscal 2013, WWU recorded the non-operating pledged revenue to fiscal 2012. 
The	first	installment	payment	of	$50	thousand	did	not	materialize	during	fiscal	2013	and	will	be	paid	in	fiscal	2014.	

The following graphs illustrate revenues by source for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012: 

WWU’s	operating	expenses	increased	$19.4	million	(8.2%)	during	fiscal	2013	and	decreased	$8.7	million	(-3.6%)	
when comparing fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2011. The fiscal 2013 increase is primarily due to salary and supplies increases. 
A portion of the fiscal 2012 reduction can be attributed to decreased salary and wages and benefits expense. 

Salary	and	wages	and	benefits	expenses	increased	$7.7	million	(5.0%)	when	comparing	fiscal	2013	to	fiscal	2012	
primarily	due	to	a	negotiated	increase	in	faculty	salaries	of	$4.2	million	combined	with	a	$2.3	million	increase	in	the	
amortization of the supplemental pension liability. When comparing fiscal 2012 to fiscal 2011, salaries and wages 
decreased	$3.5	million	primarily	due	to	the	elimination	of	positions	through	attrition	and	layoffs.
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Total	  Revenues	  by	  Source	  For	  the	  	  
Year	  Ended	  June	  30,	  2012	  	  
$255,279	  (in	  thousands)	  

Tui-on	  and	  Fees,	  Net	  $99,703	  

State	  Appropria-ons	  -‐	  Opera-ng	  
$43,083	  

Auxiliary	  Enterprises	  $52,706	  

Grants	  and	  Contracts	  $37,840	  

State	  Appropria-ons	  -‐	  Capital	  
$6,883	  

Sales	  and	  Services	  of	  Educa-onal	  
Ac-vi-es	  $5,367	  

Other	  Capital	  Revenue	  $7,785	  

Other	  	  $1,912	  
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Total	  Expenses	  by	  Natural	  ClassificaIon	  	  
for	  the	  Year	  Ended	  June	  30,	  2012	  

	  $239,796(in	  thousands)	  

Salaries	  $114,815	  

Supplies	  	  $39,382	  

Benefits	  $36,306	  

Deprecia-on	  $20,043	  

Scholarships	  $15,279	  

U-li-es	  $5,322	  

Purchased	  &	  personal	  
services	  	  $4,371	  

Interest	  and	  other	  $4,278	  
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Total	  Revenues	  by	  Source	  For	  the	  	  
Year	  Ended	  June	  30,	  2013	  	  
$265,069	  (in	  thousands)	  

Tui-on	  and	  Fees,	  Net	  $110,886	  

State	  Appropria-ons	  -‐	  Opera-ng	  
$40,052	  

Auxiliary	  Enterprises	  $53,520	  

Grants	  and	  Contracts	  $41,889	  

State	  Appropria-ons	  -‐	  Capital	  
$8,417	  

Sales	  and	  Services	  of	  Educa-onal	  
Ac-vi-es	  $4,804	  

Other	  Capital	  Revenue	  $3,200	  

Other	  	  $2,301	  
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Total	  Expenses	  by	  Natural	  ClassificaIon	  	  
for	  the	  Year	  Ended	  June	  30,	  2013	  

	  $259,618	  (in	  thousands)	  

Salaries	  $121,030	  

Supplies	  	  $48,574	  

Benefits	  $37,786	  

Deprecia-on	  $21,699	  

Scholarships	  $16,797	  

U-li-es	  $5,386	  

Purchased	  &	  personal	  
services	  	  $4,694	  

Interest	  and	  other	  $3,652	  
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Scholarships	and	fellowships	increased	in	fiscal	2013	$1.5	million	(9.9%)	due	to	increases	in	financial	aid	payments	made	
directly	to	students.	Scholarships	and	fellowships	decreased	in	fiscal	2012	by	$2.5	million	(-14.2%)	when	compared	
to fiscal 2011 due to decreases in financial aid payments made directly to students for non-institutional expenses. 

Supplies	and	materials	increased	$9.2	million	(23.3%)	primarily	due	to	a	$3.1	million	increase	in	non-capitalized	
repairs	and	maintenance	to	campus	buildings	and	facilities	and	$2.6	million	expensed	for	library	purchases	and	
other items that were originally included in fiscal 2012 as a capital asset but were later deemed to not meet the 
capitalization	threshold.	Supplies	and	materials	decreased	$4.5	million	(-10.3%)	when	comparing	fiscal	2012	to	fiscal	
2011 due to a reduction in non-capitalized office furnishing purchases with the completion of Miller Hall. 

Depreciation	expense	increased	$1.7	million	(8.3%)	during	fiscal	2013	and	$2.0	million	(10.9%)	during	fiscal	2012	as	
additional capital assets were completed and depreciated. 

The following graphs illustrate expenses by natural classification for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:
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Operating Loss 
WWU’s	operating	losses	were	$59.0	million	in	fiscal	2013,	an	increase	of	$5.6	million	(10.5%)	from	fiscal	2012,	and	
$53.4	million	in	fiscal	2012,	a	decrease	of	$22.9	million	(-30.0%)	from	fiscal	2011.		Operating	revenues	increased	$14.8	
million	(8.2%)	during	fiscal	2013	and	increased	$14.2	million	(8.5%)	during	fiscal	2012,	while	operating	expenditures	
increased	in	fiscal	2013	by	$19.4	million	(8.2%)	and	decreased	by	$8.7	million	(-3.6%)	fiscal	2012.	The	increases	in	
operating	revenue	are	largely	due	to	the	16.0%	tuition	rate	increases	in	fiscal	2013	and	fiscal	2012,	respectively.

GASB standards require that State appropriations and Federal Pell grants are classified as nonoperating revenues, 
thereby	creating	the	significant	operating	loss.		If	these	revenues	were	classified	as	operating,	the	operating	loss	in	
fiscal	2013	would	have	been	$3.4	million	and	the	operating	gain	would	be	$3.6	million	in	fiscal	2012.

Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future  
WWU	received	a	28%	funding	increase	in	the	Washington	state	2013-2015	biennial	budget.		The	$22.9	million	in	
additional	state	appropriations	include	$9.5	million	to	restore	base	cuts	from	prior	biennium,	$2.9	million	to	expand	
WWU’s	Computer	Science	and	Engineering	programs	and	$10.5	million	in	new	institutional	funding.		While	this	is	
a significant increase in state appropriations, WWU remains cautiously optimistic about future appropriations due to 
legislative actions that may or may not change our funding levels in the future. 

As	a	result	of	the	increased	state	appropriations,	WWU	will	hold	the	academic	year	2013-2014	tuition	rates	at	the	
2012-2013 level for undergraduate resident students. The non-resident undergraduate, resident graduate, non-resident 
graduate	and	the	Masters	in	Business	Administration	rates	for	resident	and	non-resident	students	will	increase	3%.		
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
November 22, 2013 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Western Washington University 
Bellingham, Washington 
 
 
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
discretely presented component unit of Western Washington University, Whatcom County, 
Washington, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.   
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did 
not audit the financial statements of the Western Washington University Foundation, a discretely 
presented component unit.  Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has 
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Western 
Washington University Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.   We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the University’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

Washington State Auditor 
Troy Kelley 

 
Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (360) 902-0370   TDD Relay (800) 833-6388 
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reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of Western Washington University are intended to 
present the financial position, the changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows of 
only that portion of the governmental and business-type activities of the state of Washington that is 
attributable to the transactions of the University.  They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly 
the financial position of the state of Washington as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the changes in its 
financial position, or where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type 
activities and the discretely presented component unit of Western Washington University, as of June 
30, 2013 and 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Matters of Emphasis 
As described in Note 1, during the year ended June 30, 2013, the University has implemented the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets 
and Liabilities.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 13 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
TROY KELLEY 
STATE AUDITOR 
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Statement of Net Position

2013 2012

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $35,598,392 $41,090,684 

Investments (Note 4) 21,721,286 20,354,587 

Funds with State Treasurer (Note 5) 3,132,895 8,743,359 

Interest receivable 644,030 565,983 

Accounts receivable, net (Note 6) 7,402,884 4,891,069 

Pledged gift receivable from the Foundation (Note 24) 100,000 50,000

Prepaid expenses 510,507 413,261 

Inventories (Note 8) 1,370,459 1,286,705 

Total current assets 70,480,453 77,395,648 

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 1,123,060 1,461,832 

Restricted investments (Note 4) 12,291,656 9,024,321 

Investments (Note 4) 35,453,680 24,396,299 

Due from State Treasurer 2,902,710 3,375,099 

Student loans receivable, net (Note 7) 7,711,713 7,778,036 

Pledged gift receivable from the Foundation (Note 24) 864,314 909,216

Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 9) 36,500,470 24,544,930 

Depreciable capital assets, net (Note 9) 404,995,776 417,707,959 

Other assets (Note 1) 100,438 570,717 

Total noncurrent assets 501,943,817 489,768,409 

Total assets 572,424,270 567,164,057 

Deferred outflows

Deferred loss on bond refunding 1,797,593 1,643,980 

Total deferred outflows 1,797,593 1,643,980 

Liabilities  

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,527,565 10,004,791 

Deposits payable 2,738,929 2,513,625 

Unearned revenues 7,371,333 6,536,220 

Compensated absences (Note 11) 7,768,373 7,788,971 

Current portion of bonds and notes payable (Notes 12,13,15) 3,461,463 3,254,025 

Current portion of net pension obligations (Note 15,19) 376,000 214,000 

Deposits held in custody for others 205,890 322,616 

Total current liabilities 31,449,553 30,634,248 

Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term portion of bonds and notes payable (Note 12, 13,15) 77,534,122 80,528,094 

Long-term net pension obligations (Note 15,19) 7,384,970 5,248,938 

Total noncurrent liabilities 84,919,092 85,777,032 

Total Liabilities 116,368,645 116,411,280 

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 363,010,380 361,802,573 

Restricted for:

Nonexpendable:  scholarships and professorships 4,629,007 4,629,007 

Expendable:

    Instruction and research 2,855,267 2,449,905 

    Loans 14,321,853 14,001,443 

    Capital Projects 11,524,286 13,967,401 

Unrestricted 61,512,425 55,546,428 

Total net position $457,853,218 $452,396,757 
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2013 2012

Assets (Restated)

Cash and cash equivalents $437,771 $1,750,884 

Unconditional promises to give, net 4,342,482 4,122,935

Investments:

Operating investment pool 10,757,553 9,298,513

Endowment investment pool 48,527,533 42,248,335

Endowment real estate held for investment 2,789,800 2,659,200

Annuity and life income investments 4,241,160 4,157,673

Real property and notes receivable 192,757 458,757

Total investments 66,508,803 58,822,478

Other assets 116,964 22,985

Property and equipment, net 569,285 16,843

Total Assets 71,975,305 64,736,125

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 193,165 265,845

Due to Western Washington University 274,461 321,390

Gift payable to Western Washington University, net 964,314 959,216

Annuity and life income obligations 1,323,278 1,339,382

Investments held in trust for Western Washington University 10,719,104 9,632,996

Contingent obligation to Northwest Indian College Foundation 1,089,135 1,020,031

Total Liabilities 14,563,457 13,538,860

Net Assets

Unrestricted 14,230,832 10,904,221

Temporarily restricted 18,119,831 16,961,391

Permanently restricted 25,061,185 23,331,653

Total Net Assets 57,411,848 51,197,265

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $71,975,305 $64,736,125 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

2013 2012

Operating Revenues

Student tuition and fees $136,690,266 $120,437,058 

Less scholarship allowances (25,804,362) (20,733,825)

Net student tuition and fees 110,885,904 99,703,233 

Federal grants and contracts 7,058,646 6,940,282 

State and local grants and contracts 17,594,759 14,279,909 

Nongovernmental grants and contracts 2,721,486 2,720,510 

Sales and services of educational activities 4,804,365 5,366,676 

Interest earned on loans to students 168,043 150,206 

Other operating revenue 186,834 233,963 

Auxiliary enterprises 59,582,226 57,830,760 

Less scholarship allowances (6,062,503) (5,125,147)

Net auxiliary enterprises 53,519,723 52,705,613 

Total operating revenues 196,939,760 182,100,392 

Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages 121,029,531 114,814,608 

Benefits 37,786,101 36,306,406 

Scholarships and fellowships 16,796,678 15,278,601 

Utilities 5,385,944 5,322,270 

Supplies and materials 48,573,820 39,382,286 

Purchased services 4,694,225 4,371,367 

Depreciation 21,698,636 20,042,554 

Total operating expenses 255,964,935 235,518,092 

Operating loss (59,025,175) (53,417,700)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

State appropriations 40,052,232 43,083,007 

Federal Pell grant revenue 14,514,274 13,899,353 

Investment income 628,431 568,859 

Interest on indebtedness (3,652,599) (4,041,655)

Gain (loss) on endowments 1,289,455 (199,342)

Nonoperating rental property expense/income 27,821 (36,817)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 52,859,614 53,273,405 

Income (Loss) before other revenues (6,165,561) (144,295)

Other Revenues

Capital appropriations 8,417,155 6,883,439 

Other capital revenue 3,204,867 7,784,973 

Pledged gift revenue from the Foundation                  959,216

Total other revenues 11,622,022 15,627,628

Increase in net position 5,456,461 15,483,333

Net position, beginning of year 452,396,757 436,913,424 

Net position end of year $457,853,218 $452,396,757 
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Unrestricted
Temporarily 

Restricted
Permanently 

Restricted
2013 Total 

Support and Revenue:

Contributions $2,098,006 $1,400,898 $1,729,532 $5,228,436 

In-kind services and facilities provided by

Western Washington University 2,730,236 2,730,236 

Interest and dividends 442,123 649,141 1,091,264 

Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 1,390,828 3,468,779 4,859,607 

Return on annuity and life income investments 286,620 286,620 

Change in valuation of annuity and life income obligations  (250,703)  (250,703)

Administrative fees  789,737 789,737 

Fundraising events and other 69,379 493,932              563,311 

Total support and revenue before net assets  
released from restrictions

7,520,309 6,048,667 1,729,532 15,298,508

Net assets released from restrictions 4,858,935 (4,858,935)

Recovery of underwater endowments 31,292 (31,292)                           

Total Support and Revenue 12,410,536 1,158,440 1,729,532 15,298,508 

Expenses: 

Program services and grants 5,283,610 5,283,610 

Management and general in-kind 1,566,042 1,566,042 

Management and general - other 287,236 287,236 

Fundraising in-kind 1,164,194  1,164,194 

Fundraising - other 782,843                           782,843 

Total Expenses 9,083,925                           9,083,925 

Change in Net Assets 3,326,611 1,158,440 1,729,532 6,214,583 

Net Assets, beginning of year (restated) 10,904,221 16,961,391 23,331,653 51,197,265 

Net Assets, end of year $14,230,832 $18,119,831 $25,061,185 $57,411,848 

Financial Report 2013

Foundation Statement of Activities 
& Changes in Net Assets
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Unrestricted Temporarily 
Restricted

Permanently 
Restricted

2012 Total 
(Restated)

Support and Revenue:

Contributions $569,784 $5,006,747 $769,277 $6,345,808 

In-kind services and facilities provided by

Western Washington University 2,197,121      2,197,121 

Interest and dividends 425,529 608,696   1,034,225 

Net realized and unrealized gains on investments (124,837) (522,875)   (647,712)

Return on annuity and life income investments  120,999   120,999 

Change in valuation of annuity and life income obligations  (136,408)  (136,408)

Administrative fees  566,875   566,875 

Fundraising events and other 37,821 437,887              475,708 

Total support and revenue before net assets  
released from restrictions

3,672,293 5,515,046 769,277 9,956,616 

Net assets released from restrictions 4,865,323 (5,243,891)  378,568 

Change in restrictions 96,246 (97,455) 1,209 

Shortfall for underwater endowments (133,661) 133,661                           

Total Support and Revenue 8,500,201 307,361 1,149,054 9,956,616 

Expenses: 

Program services and grants 6,909,622 6,909,622 

Management and general in-kind 1,217,709 1,217,709 

Management and general - other 265,799 265,799 

Fundraising - WWU in-kind 979,412  979,412 

Fundraising - other 395,560                           395,560 

Total Expenses 9,768,102                           9,768,102 

Change in Net Assets (1,267,901) 307,361 1,149,054 188,514 

Net Assets, beginning of year (restated) 12,172,122 16,654,030 22,182,599 51,008,751 

Net Assets, end of year (restated) $10,904,221 $16,961,391 $23,331,653 $51,197,265 

Financial Report 2013

Foundation Statement of Activities 
& Changes in Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows

2013 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   

Tuition and fees $110,396,695 $100,196,266 

Grants and contracts 26,458,925 24,390,823 

Payments to vendors (71,522,472) (64,990,544)

Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (157,737,351) (150,370,134)

Loans issued to students (1,422,760) (1,027,167)

Collection of loans to students 1,400,371 1,257,169 

Sales of auxiliary enterprises 53,464,583 51,619,995 

Sales and services of educational activities 4,787,788 5,289,901 

Interest received on loans to students 354,877 384,169 

Net cash used by operating activities (33,819,344) (33,249,522)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities  

State appropriations 40,081,177 43,447,168 

Direct Lending proceeds 68,933,156 69,447,710 

Direct Lending disbursements (68,844,444) (69,753,232)

Federal Pell grant receipts 14,514,274 13,899,353 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 54,684,163 57,040,999 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchases of investments (37,558,009) (57,706,458)

Net proceeds from sales of investments 23,156,049 57,566,801 

Interest received on investments 547,281 557,934 

Net cash (used)/provided by investing activities (13,854,679) 418,277 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Proceeds from capital debt 9,374,908 27,490,000 

Interest earned on bond proceeds  3,103  2,161 

Capital appropriations 8,860,599 6,512,139 

Other capital (expense)/revenue 8,076,563 (1,376,639)

Contributions and gifts in-kind 733,670  5,406,954 

Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 8,768 28,511 

Purchases of capital assets (24,283,368) (26,149,394)

Principal paid on capital debt (12,800,256) (27,244,419)

Interest paid on capital debt (2,848,471) (3,446,801)

Other activities 33,280 (36,817)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (12,841,204) (18,814,305)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eqivalents (5,831,064) 5,395,449

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 42,552,516 37,157,067

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $36,721,452 $42,552,516
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements

2013 2012

Operating loss  ($59,025,175) ($53,417,700)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used  
by operating activities 

Depreciation expense 21,698,636 20,042,554 

Gain on disposal of fixed assets  2,621,739  36,609 

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Funds with the State Treasurer (114,000)

Accounts receivable (2,511,815) (643,701)

Student loans receivable 66,323 (68,203)

Inventories (83,754) 88,085 

Prepaid expenses (97,246) 189,962 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 279,536 (1,170,843)

Deferred revenue 835,113 308,264 

Student and other deposits 225,304 138,308 

Deposits held in custody (105,438) 239,486 

Compensated absences (20,598) (135,826)

Net pension obligation expense 2,298,031 1,257,483 

Net cash used by operating activities  ($33,819,344) ($33,249,522)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 

Acquisition of capital assets through accounts payable $2,258,069 $2,966,198

Financial Report 2013
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity 
Western Washington University (WWU) is a compre-
hensive, degree granting public university in the State 
of	Washington.		It	is	governed	by	a	Board	of	eight	
Trustees appointed by the Governor.  These financial 
statements summarize all the fund types of WWU in-
cluding agency funds.  

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles 
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of 
the primary government, as well as its component unit, 
the Western Washington University Foundation (the 
Foundation).

The Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt entity. 
The Board of Directors is self–perpetuating and con-
sists of 31 members. WWU has an agreement with the 
Foundation to design and implement such programs 
and procedures so as to persuade continuous and spe-
cial	philanthropic	support	for	the	benefit	of	WWU.	In	
exchange, WWU provides the Foundation with office 
facilities, furniture and equipment, and a significant 
number of full-time employees and support services, 
including depository, disbursing, and payroll and pur-
chasing functions. Although WWU does not control 
the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, 
the majority of the resources or income the Foundation 
holds and invests is restricted for the activities of WWU 
by the donors. The Foundation’s activity is reported in 
separate financial statement because of the difference in 
its reporting model as described below.

The Foundation reports its financial results under 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 958-605, 
Revenue Recognition, and ASC 958-205, Presentation 
of Financial Statement.

As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and pre-
sentation features are different from GASB.  No mod-
ifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial 
information in WWU’s financial statement for these dif-
ferences; however, significant note disclosures (see Note 
2) to the Foundation’s financial statement have been in-
corporated into WWU’s notes to the financial statement.

The Foundation’s financial statement can be obtained by 
contacting	the	Foundation	at	(360)	650-3408.

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements are presented in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles and fol-
lowing the guidance given by GASB. WWU has special 
purpose reports reflecting the net position, results of 
operations and cash flows for certain auxiliary units: 
Housing and Dinning System, Wade King Recreational 
Center, Parking Services and Associated Students 
Bookstore. These financial statements present only a se-
lected portion of the activities of WWU. As such, they 
are not intended to and do not present the financial po-
sition, results of operations, or changes in net position 
of WWU. The auxiliary unit financial statement can be 
obtained by contacting Western Washington University 
at (360) 650-3675.

Basis of Accounting 
For financial reporting purposes, WWU is considered 
a special-purpose government engaged only in busi-
ness-type activities. Accordingly, WWU’s financial 
statements have been presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recog-
nized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an 
obligation has been incurred.  All intra-agency transac-
tions have been eliminated.  

New Accounting Pronouncements 
On July 1, 2011, WWU adopted GASB Statement No. 
60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements”.  This pronouncement 
provides guidance on the reporting of assets used and 
provided by a service contractor.  WWU financial state-
ment did not change based on this pronouncement.

On July 1, 2011, WWU adopted GASB Statement 
No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 
1989	FASB	and	AICPA	Pronouncements”.	The	prima-
ry objective of this pronouncement is to directly incor-
porate	the	applicable	provisions	in	FASB	and	AICPA	
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 
1989, into the state and local government accounting 
and financial reporting standards.

On July 1, 2011, WWU adopted GASB Statement 
No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows 
of	Resources,	Deferred	Inflows	of	Resources,	and	Net	
Position”.  This pronouncement provides guidance on 
including deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources in addition to assets and liabilities, 
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as well as the reporting of Net Position as opposed to 
Net Assets. WWU’s financial statements reflect these 
changes.

On July 1, 2011, WWU adopted GASB Statement 
No.	64,	“Derivative	Instruments:	Application	of	Hedge	
Accounting Termination Provisions-an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 53”. This pronouncement pro-
vides guidance on specific circumstances where hedge 
accounting may continue after the termination of the 
hedging derivative instrument. WWU’s statement did 
not change based on this pronouncement. 

On July 1, 2012, WWU adopted GASB Statement 
No.	65,	“Items	Previously	Reported	as	Assets	and	
Liabilities”. This statement establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards that reclassify as deferred 
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, 
certain items that were previously reported as assets 
and liabilities. During a review of assets and liabilities 
it was determined that, due to materiality, remaining 
bond costs would be expensed during fiscal 2013. The 
deferred amount from bond refunding has been reclas-
sified as deferred outflows. 

On July 1, 2012, WWU adopted GASB Statement 
No. 61 “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an 
amendment	of	GASB	Statement	No.	14	and	No.	34”.	
This statement modifies certain requirements for in-
clusion of component units in the financial reporting 
entity. For organizations that previously were required 
to be included as component units by meeting the fis-
cal dependency criterion, a financial benefit or burden 
relations also would need to be present between the 
primary government and that organization for it to be 
included in the reporting entity as a component unit. 
Management determined that the discretely presented 
component unit would be misleading to exclude.

OThER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank 
demand deposits, and deposits with the Washington 
State	Local	Government	Investment	Pool	(LGIP).	Cash	
and cash equivalents that are held with the intent to 
fund WWU operations are classified as current assets 
along	with	operating	funds	invested	in	the	LGIP.	Cash,	
cash equivalents, and investments that represent unspent 
bond proceeds or are held with the intent to fund capital 
projects are classified as noncurrent assets.  Endowment 

investments are also classified as noncurrent assets.  
WWU records all cash, cash equivalent, and investments 
at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  

WWU combines unrestricted cash operating funds 
from all departments into an internal investment pool, 
the income from which is allocated on a proportion-
al basis.  The internal investment pool is comprised 
of cash, cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, U.S. 
Treasuries and U.S. Agency securities.

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fee charges 
to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided 
to	students,	faculty	and	staff.		It	also	includes	amounts	
due from the Federal government, State and local gov-
ernments, or private sources, in connection with reim-
bursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to 
WWU’s grants and contracts.  Accounts receivable are 
shown net of estimated uncollectible amounts.

Inventories 
Inventories	are	carried	at	the	lower	of	cost	or	market	value.

Capital Assets 
Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost 
or, if acquired by gift, at fair market value on the date 
of the gift.  For equipment, WWU’s capitalization 
policy	includes	all	items	with	a	unit	cost	of	$5,000	or	
more and an estimated useful life of greater than one 
year.  Renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and 
land improvements that significantly increase the value 
or extend the useful life of the structure are capital-
ized.  Routine repairs and maintenance are charged 
to operating expense in the year in which the expense 
was	incurred.		Interest	expense	incurred	during	capital	
construction is capitalized as part of the building cost.  
During	fiscal	2013	and	fiscal	2012,	$38,374	and	$0	in	
construction related interest was capitalized, respec-
tively.  Depreciation is computed using the straight line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 
generally	40	to	50	years	for	buildings,	20	to	25	years	
for infrastructure and land improvements, 15 years for 
library resources, and 5 to 7 years for equipment.

Bond Premiums/Discounts 
Bond premiums/discounts are deferred and amortized 
over the term of the bonds using the effective interest 
method.  The remaining balances of bond premiums/
discounts are presented in the Statement of Net 
Position net of the face amount of bonds payable.  
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Deferred Outflows 
For the year ended June 30, 2013, WWU implemented 
GASB	65	“Items	Previously	Reported	as	Assets	and	
Liabilities”. Statement No. 65 established accounting 
and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as 
deferred outflow of resources or deferred inflows of 
resources, certain items that were previously reported 
as assets and liabilities and recognized as outflow of 
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities. Deferred 
outflow of resources is a consumption of net assets that 
is applicable to a future reporting period.  The imple-
mentation of this standard reclassified the deferred 
losses on defeasance of bond debt as a deferred outflow. 
These amounts do not meet the definition of an asset 
or liability since the amounts do not represent an in-
crease in service capacity and the resources cannot be 
exchanged for another asset or used to directly provide 
present service capacity. The deferred outflow amounts 
are	$1,797,593	and	$1,643,980	for	fiscal	years	2013	and	
2012, respectively. 

Unearned revenues 
Unearned revenues occur when revenues have been col-
lected for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary activities 
prior to the end of the fiscal year, but relate to services 
to be provided in the following fiscal year.

Net Position 
WWU’s net position is classified as follows:

Net investment in capital assets 
This represents WWU’s total investment in capital as-
sets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those 
capital assets.  To the extent debt has been incurred, but 
not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are 
not included as a component of capital assets but are 
included as a component of restricted expendable net 
position described below.

Restricted net position, expendable 
Restricted expendable include resources in which WWU 
is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accor-
dance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.

Restricted net position, nonexpendable 
Nonexpendable restricted consist of endowment and 
similar type funds in which donors or other outside 
sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instru-
ment, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate 
and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of pro-

ducing present and future income, which may either be 
expended or added to principal.

Unrestricted net position 
Unrestricted represent resources derived from student 
tuition and fees, State appropriations, and sales and 
services of educational departments and auxiliary enter-
prises.  These resources are used for transactions relating 
to the educational and general operations of WWU, and 
may be used at the discretion of the governing board to 
meet expenses.  These resources also include auxiliary en-
terprises, which are substantially self-supporting activities 
that provide services for students, faculty and staff.

Classification of Revenues and Expenses 
WWU has classified its revenues and expenses as either 
operating or nonoperating according to the following 
criteria:

Operating revenues 
Operating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of exchange transactions such as: (1) stu-
dent tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and 
allowances, (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, 
(3) most Federal, State and local grants and contracts, 
and	(4)	interest	on	institutional	student	loans.

Operating expenses 
Operating expenses are those costs incurred in daily 
operations, such as salaries and wages, benefits, schol-
arships and fellowships expenses, depreciation, utilities, 
and supplies.

Nonoperating revenues 
Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the 
characteristics of non-exchange transactions, such as 
State appropriations, Federal Pell grant revenue and 
investment income. 

Nonoperating expenses 
Nonoperating expenses include costs related to fi-
nancing or investing activities such as interest on 
indebtedness.

Other Revenues 
Other revenues include activities that have the char-
acteristics of non-exchange transactions, such as state 
capital appropriations and gifts to endowments.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other 
revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. Scholarship 
discounts and allowances are the difference between 
the stated charge for goods and services provided by 
WWU, and the amount that is paid by students and/or 
third parties making payments on the students’ behalf.  
Certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and 
other Federal, State or non-governmental programs are 
recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues 
in WWU’s financial Statement. To the extent that reve-
nues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and 
fees and other student charges, WWU has recorded a 
scholarship discount and allowance.

Tax Exemption 
WWU is a tax-exempt instrumentality of the State of 
Washington organized under the provisions of Section 
115(a)	of	the	Internal	Revenue	Code	and	is	exempt	
from Federal income taxes on related income.

Reclassifications 
Certain accounts in the prior year financial statement 
have been reclassified for comparative purposes to con-
form to the presentation in the current year financial 
statement.

2. COMPONENT UNIT

The Western Washington University Foundation (the 
Foundation) is a discretely presented component unit of 
WWU. The language in the Foundation’s bylaws satis-
fies the “direct benefit” criterion, and the “entitlement/
ability to access” criterion is met due to the Foundation’s 
history of supporting WWU. The “significance” cri-
terion is met because the combined resources used by  
WWU activities and the restricted resources held by 
the Foundation are deemed to be significant to WWU, 
regardless of the extent to which those resources may be 
used for “in-kind”. 

The Foundation presents information about its financial 
position and activities according to the following three 
classes of net position, depending on the existence and 
nature of donor restrictions:

Unrestricted net assets 
Support received that is not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and over which the Board of Directors has 
discretionary control is classified as unrestricted. 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Support received subject to donor-imposed use restric-
tions or time restrictions that will be met either through 
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time is 
classified	as	temporarily	restricted.		In	the	period	donor	
restrictions are met, temporarily restricted net assets 
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statement of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets 
Support received subject to donor-imposed restric-
tions stipulating that funds be invested in perpetuity 
is	classified	as	permanently	restricted.		In	accordance	
with purposes stipulated by the donors, earnings from 
such funds may be either unrestricted or temporarily 
restricted.

3. CASh AND CASh EQUIVALENTS

WWU combines unrestricted cash operating funds 
from all departments into an internal investment pool, 
the income from which is allocated to the depart-
ments on a proportional basis.  The internal investment 
pool is comprised of cash and cash equivalents and 
investments.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, petty 
cash, change funds, bank balances, and funds held in the 
Local	Government	Investment	Pool	(LGIP).	

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance	Corporation	(FDIC)	or	by	a	collateral	
pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit 
Protection Commission (PDPC).

The	LGIP	is	comparable	to	a	Rule	2a-7	money	mar-
ket fund recognized by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (17CFR.270.2a-7).  Rule 2a-7 funds are 
limited to high quality obligations with limited maxi-
mum and average maturities, the effect of which is to 
minimize	both	market	and	credit	risk.		The	LGIP	is	an	
unrated investment pool.

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the carrying amount of cash 
and	cash	equivalents	is	$36,721,452	and	$42,552,516,	
respectively.  These balances include restricted cash and 
cash	equivalents	of	$297,456	in	unspent	Recreation	
Center	bond	proceeds	and	$825,604	renewal	and	re-
placements	at	June	30,	2013	and	$566,667	in	unspent	
Housing and Dining and Recreation Center unspent 
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bond	proceeds	at	June	30,	2012	along	with	$895,165	in	
Recreation Center renewal and replacement funds.  The 
carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approxi-
mates the market value.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments	include	internally	pooled	cash	operating	
funds, renewal and replacement funds, unspent bond 
proceeds, and University endowment funds.  

WWU	held	$6,036,447	and	$6,064,351	in	certificates	
of deposits in pooled investments at June 30, 2013 
and	2012,	respectively.	WWU	held	$51,188,499	and	
$36,583,352	in	U.S.	Agency	securities	in	the	investment	
pool at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These in-
vestments	include	$414,672	in	unspent	bond	proceeds	
at June 30, 2013.

The Housing and Dining System Renewal and 
Replacement	fund	held	$3,048,012	and	$3,019,505	as	
of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. This was sepa-
rately invested in CDs and U.S. Agencies.

University endowment funds are held and managed by 
the Western Washington University Foundation (the 
Foundation). The endowment funds are invested in ac-
cordance with the Foundation policy under the direction 
of the Foundation Finance and Audit Committee (the 
Committee). The committee is responsible for reviewing 
and defining investment policy, monitoring investment 
performance, and recommending managers to oversee 
the investment of the portfolio. The Committee reviews 
and updates its investment policy every three years. 

As of June 30, 2013, WWU’s Endowment funds are 
comprised	of	$5,942,281	in	donor	restricted	and	unre-
stricted	funds	and	$4,776,823	in	Quasi-endowments.	
As	of	June	30,	2012,	the	balances	were	$5,464,938	and	
$4,168,067,	respectively.		

Credit (Quality ) Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter-
party will not fulfill its obligations.  Statutory and policy 
constraints with regard to the types of instruments 
available for investment limit WWU’s exposure to this 
risk.	Instruments	available	for	investment	include	ob-
ligations of the US Treasury and agency securities and 
certificates of deposit. The certificates of deposit held in 
the internal investment pool are insured by the Federal 
Deposit	Insurance	Company	(FDIC)	or	by	a	collateral	

pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit 
Protection Commission (PDPC).  US Agency securities 
are rated at least AA by the three major rating agencies.

Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty, WWU will not be able to 
recover the value of the investment.  As of June 30, 
2013	WWU	had	$51,188,499	in	US	Agencies	held	in	
custody by Bank of New York Mellon in WWU’s name.

Interest Rate Risk 
WWU manages its exposure to fair value losses in the 
internal investment pool by targeting the portfolio du-
ration to 2.25 years and limiting the weighted average 
maturity to a maximum of three years.  WWU generally 
does not invest operating funds in securities maturing 
more than five years from the date of purchase.

Endowment funds are invested under the Foundation 
Investment	Policy	guidelines.	These	guidelines	include	
the primary objective of achieving long-term growth, 
while using prudent investing practices and do not limit 
investment maturities as a means to managing interest 
rate exposure. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk for investments is the risk 
of loss attributable to the magnitude of an investment 
in a single issuer.  WWU’s operating investment policy 
limits	per	issuer	holdings	to	5%,	with	the	exception	of	
U.S.	Treasuries	(100%),	U.S.	Agencies	(35%	per	agency),	
and	Certificates	of	Deposit	(10%).		The	Endowment	
Investment	Policy	limits	the	endowment	investments	
to	no	more	than	5%	of	the	portfolio	for	a	single	issu-
er, with the exception of U.S. government and agency 
securities.
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At June 30, 2013, WWU held the following in cash, cash equivalents and investments: 

Description  Fair 
 Value 

Weighted Average 
Maturity (in Years)

WWU Investment Pool: 

   Cash & Cash Equivalents $36,721,452  0.001 

   Time Certificates of Deposits (CDs)  6,036,447  0.057 

   U.S. Agencies  49,662,050  1.311 

WWU Endowment Funds:

  Cash & cash equivalents  45,265

  Fixed income investments:

    U.S. Treasuries  430,697  14.600 

    U.S. Agencies  513,602  4.700 

    Other fixed income  1,264,116  n/a 

  Equity investments  6,468,949  n/a 

  Real estate  585,252  n/a 

  Alternative investments  1,411,223  n/a 

Other Investments:

  Renewal and Replacement Time CDs  1,521,563  3.241 

  Renewal and Replacement U.S. Agencies  1,526,449  0.411 

  Miscellaneous  1,010  n/a 

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $106,188,075

At June 30, 2012, WWU held the following in cash, cash equivalents and investments:

Description  Fair 
 Value 

Weighted Average 
Maturity (in Years)

WWU Investment Pool: 

   Cash & Cash Equivalents $42,552,516  0.001 

   Time Certificates of Deposits (CDs)  6,064,351  0.028 

   U.S. Agencies  35,057,345  0.680 

WWU Endowment Funds:

  Cash & cash equivalents  137,910  0.003

  Fixed income investments:

    U.S. Treasuries  115,480  12.004 

    U.S. Agencies  555,206  3.893 

    Other fixed income  1,542,910  n/a 

  Equity investments  5,940,369  n/a 

  Real estate  568,593  n/a 

  Alternative investments  772,537  n/a 

Other Investments:

  Renewal and Replacement Time CDs  1,493,498  0.013 

  Renewal and Replacement U.S. Agencies  1,526,007  0.025 

  Miscellaneous  1,000  n/a 

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $96,327,722 
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5. FUNDS WITh STATE TREASURER

This account represents WWU’s share of net earnings 
of the State of Washington Normal School Permanent 
Fund and the building fee portion of tuition, reduced 
by expenditures for capital projects and debt service 
incurred over the years. The Normal School Permanent 
Fund,	established	under	RCW	43.79.160,	is	a	perma-
nent endowment fund.  Earnings from the investment 
are either reinvested or used for the benefit of Central 
Washington University, Eastern Washington University, 
Western Washington University, and The Evergreen 
State College.  

The investing activities are the responsibility of the 
Washington State Treasurer’s Office. The primary sourc-

es of new principal for the Normal School Permanent 
fund are revenues, primarily timber sales, from certain 
State lands.  The State lands include 100,000 acres 
granted by the United States government for state nor-
mal schools and are managed by the State Department 
of	Natural	Resources.	In	addition	to	the	Permanent	
Fund,	the	Office	of	the	State	Treasurer	held	$116,828	
in remaining Certificate of Participation (COP) funds 
during fiscal 2013, which will be used for an energy sav-
ing capital project.

WWU’s combined earnings and distributions on the 
fund for the years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012 are 
$2,466,100	and	$2,378,019,	respectively,	which	are	re-
ported as other capital revenue along with any capital 
gifts or contributions.

2013 2012

Student tuition and fees $2,780,861 $1,826,263 

Federal, State and private grants and contracts 2,598,992 2,418,437 

Auxiliary enterprises and other operating activities 2,667,501 1,237,379 

Total accounts receivable 8,047,354 5,482,079 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (644,470) (591,010)

Accounts receivable, net $7,402,884 $4,891,069

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the major components of accounts receivable are as follows:

7. STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, student loans receivable are as follows:

2013 2012

Federal Perkins student loans $8,577,935 $8,648,042 

Other long-term loans 34,662 36,108 

Institutional loans 51,020 47,738 

Total student loans 8,663,617 8,731,888 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (951,904) (953,852)

Student loans receivable, net $7,711,713 $7,778,036 
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8. INVENTORIES

At	June	30,	2013	and	2012,	inventories,	stated	at	cost	using	various	methods:		retail,	first-in,	first-out	(FIFO),	or	av-
erage cost, consist of the following:

Valuation Method 2013 2012

Location  

Bookstore Retail $941,848 $767,989 

Central Stores Average Cost 21,393 86,512 

Facilities Maintenance FIFO 132,720 157,705 

Lock Shop FIFO 144,156 137,446 

Other inventory FIFO 130,343 137,053 

Total inventory $1,370,460 $1,286,705 

9. LAND AND CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

The	depreciation	expense	for	the	fiscal	years	ended	June	30,	2013	and	2012	was	$21,698,636	and	$20,042,554,	
respectively. 

Following are the changes in land and capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013:

6/30/2012 Additions/
Transfers

Retirements 6/30/2013

Non-depreciable Capital Assets

Land $12,772,593 $12,772,593 

Construction in progress 11,772,337 11,955,540 23,727,877 

Total non-depreciable capital assets $24,544,930  $11,955,540 $36,500,470 

Depreciable Capital Assets

Infrastructure $53,656,654  $710,720 $52,945,934 

Buildings 398,572,414 95,028  681,112 397,986,330 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 33,767,605 5,109,042 1,054,859 37,821,788 

Library materials, art collection 54,621,279 139,724  1,629,135 53,131,868 

Improvements 126,600,116 6,278,625 132,878,741 

Total depreciable capital assets 667,218,068  11,622,419  4,075,826 674,764,661 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Infrastructure 24,839,294 1,357,902  151,935 26,045,261 

Buildings 135,702,132 8,274,345  184,221 143,792,256 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 23,867,682 3,515,263 1,054,859 26,328,086 

Library materials, art collection 40,160,186 1,708,117  54,304 41,813,999 

Improvements 24,940,815 6,848,468 31,789,283 

Total accumulated depreciation 249,510,109  21,704,095  1,445,319 269,768,885 

Capital Assets, Net of depreciation $417,707,959  $(10,081,676)  $2,630,507 $404,995,776
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Following are the changes in land and capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012:

6/30/2011 Additions/
Transfers

Retirements 6/30/2012

Non-depreciable Capital Assets

Land $12,772,593 $12,772,593 

Construction in progress 63,030,794 (51,258,457) 11,772,337 

Total non-depreciable capital assets $75,803,387  (51,258,457) $24,544,930

Depreciable Capital Assets

Infrastructure $53,656,654 $53,656,654 

Buildings 383,069,453 15,502,961 398,572,414 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 30,215,805 4,092,600 540,800 33,767,605 

Library materials, art collection 52,869,763 1,751,516 54,621,279 

Improvements 69,965,790 56,634,326 126,600,116 

Total depreciable capital assets 589,777,465 77,981,403 540,800 667,218,068 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Infrastructure 23,457,104 1,382,190 24,839,294 

Buildings 127,419,517 8,282,615 135,702,132 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 21,543,637 2,799,725 475,680 23,867,682 

Library materials, art collection 38,303,440 1,856,746 40,160,186 

Improvements 19,219,537 5,721,278 24,940,815 

Total accumulated depreciation 229,943,235 20,042,554 475,680 249,510,109 

Capital Assets, Net of depreciation $359,834,230 $57,938,849 $65,120 $417,707,959 

10. ART COLLECTIONS

WWU has several collections of art that it does not 
capitalize.  The Outdoor Sculpture Collection is a pub-
lic art collection displayed throughout the entire cam-
pus.  There are also collections of 19th and 20th century 
prints and drawings, the Whittington Collection of 
Asian Ceramics, and the Chair Collection. These col-
lections adhere to WWU’s policy to (a) maintain them 
for public exhibition, education, or research; (b) protect, 
keep unencumbered, care for, and preserve them; and 
(c) require proceeds from their sale to be used to acquire 
other collection items.  WWU’s policy is to permit col-
lections maintained in this manner to be charged to op-
erations at the time of purchase rather than capitalized.

11. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The accrued leave balances as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 
are	$7,768,373	and	$7,788,971,	respectively.	This	con-
sists of unused vacation leave and compensatory time 
earned	for	exempt	professionals	and	classified	staff.		It	

also includes a percentage of earned and unused sick 
leave for exempt professionals and classified staff.  For 
reporting purposes, the entire balance of accrued leave is 
considered a current liability.  

In	2004,	WWU	began	participating	in	the	Voluntary	
Employees’ Beneficiary Association Medical Expense 
Plan (VEBA-MEP).  The plan is a post-retirement 
medical expense reimbursement account available to 
professional staff employees of WWU. The VEBA-
MEP enables WWU to deposit funds equivalent to the 
cash-out of compensable unused sick leave at retire-
ment, tax free to a VEBA trust account on the employ-
ee’s behalf.  

Funds deposited into a VEBA-MEP account, as well as 
the earnings on the accounts, are not subject to federal 
income or social security taxes. During fiscal 2013 and 
fiscal	2012,	$86,263	and	$92,985,	respectively,	were	
contributed to VEBA accounts by WWU on behalf of 
employees.
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12. NOTES PAYABLE

WWU finances certain land and equipment purchases through certificates of participation issued by the Washington 
State Treasurer.  WWU’s debt service requirements for these agreements for the next five years and thereafter are as 
follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest

2014  $551,463  $106,831 

2015  517,910  163,507 

2016  503,798  148,053 

2017  1,059,691  360,223 

2018  1,080,000  190,738 

2019-2023  1,510,000  168,825 

2024-2028  290,000  8,700 

Total  $5,512,862  $1,146,877

13. BONDS PAYABLE 

Bonds payable consist of revenue bonds issued by 
WWU for Housing and Dining System facilities and 
the Wade King Student Recreation Center. Bonds out-
standing are shown on the following page.

housing and Dining Revenue Bonds 
As specified in Master Resolution 97-09, the Housing 
and Dining System (the System) Revenue Fund is used 
to pay operating expenses, principal and interest, fund 
debt service reserve accounts required in subsequent 
series resolutions, pay the renewal and replacement 
fund and, if desired, retire debt in the open market.  Net 
revenues	are	pledged	to	equal	at	least	125%	of	debt	ser-
vice.  The System has funded a reserve account for debt 
service, and maintains a renewal and replacement fund 
equal	to	at	least	5%	of	outstanding	bonds.

The Housing and Dining System has the following out-
standing bond issues:

Series 2012 Revenue and Refunding Bonds with inter-
est	rates	ranging	from	3.0%	to	5.0%	and	an	aggregate	
face	value	of	$9,205,000	at	June	30,	2013,	which	is	re-
ported	net	of	the	original	issue	premium	of	$533,980.

Series 2009 A and B Revenue Bonds with interest rates 
ranging	from	3.0%	to	7.4%	and	an	aggregate	face	value	
of	$13,440,000	at	June	30,	2013,	which	is	reported	net	
of	the	original	issue	premium	of	$4,224.

Series	2006	Revenue	Bonds	with	an	interest	rate	of	4%	
and	an	aggregate	face	value	of	$7,110,000	at	June	30,	

2013, which is reported net of the original issue premi-
um	of	$27,851.

Series 2005 Revenue and Refunding Bonds with interest 
rates	ranging	from	3.375%	to	4.0%	and	an	aggregate	face	
value	of	$10,305,000	at	June	30,	2013,	which	is	reported	
net	of	the	unamortized	original	discount	of	$95,502.

Series 1998 Junior Lien Revenue and Refunding Bonds 
with	interest	rates	ranging	from	4.4%	to	5.5%	and	an	
aggregate	face	value	of	$10,055,000	at	June	30,	2013,	
which is reported net of the unamortized original issue 
premium	of	$114,776.

Wade King Student Recreation Center Revenue and 
Refunding Bonds 
The Recreation Center issued Revenue and Refunding 
Bonds Series, 2012, on April 30 2012.  The bonds bear 
interest	at	rates	of	3%	to	4%	and	have	an	aggregate	face	
value	of	$24,385,000	at	June	30,	2013,	which	is	report-
ed net of the unamortized original issue premium of 
$397,394.	

Current refunding 
On April 30, 2012, the Recreation Center issued at 
par	$24,385,000	Revenue	and	Refunding	Bonds	Series	
2012. The purpose of the bonds is the refunding of 
then-outstanding Revenue Bonds Series 2002 with 
a	principal	balance	of	$23,595,000.	The	refunded	se-
ries	2002	bonds	carried	an	interest	rate	of	4%	to	5%.	
Unamortized series 2002 bond issuance costs were 
$298,030	at	the	date	of	the	refunding.	
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Management expects the refunding will provide a net 
present	value	savings	of	approximately	$2,723,000	in	
debt service over the life of the new bonds and loss on 
defeasance	of	$532,441.	The	amount	required	to	refund	
the 2002 bonds remaining plus a refunding premium 
and	underwriter’s	discount	(total	of	$23,721,064)	were	
sent directly to the escrow agent, US Bank, and these 
funds were disbursed completely on May 1, 2012.

Advance Refunding 
On July 19 2012, the Housing and Dining System 
(the	system)	issued	at	par	$9,205,000	Revenue	and	
Refunding Bonds Series 2012 with an average interest 
rate	of	4.0%	to	advance	refund	$10,175,000	of	out-
standing	2003	Series.	The	net	proceeds	of	$9.9	million	
(after	payment	of	$161,556	in	underwriting	fees	and	
issuance costs) were used to purchase State and Local 
Government Series U.S. Treasury Securities  

Those Securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust 
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt ser-
vices payments on the 2003 Series bonds. As a result, 
the 2003 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and 
the liability for those bonds has been removed from the 
general long-term debt. The System advance refunded 
the 2003 Series bonds to reduce its total debt service 
payments	over	the	next	11	years	by	$871	thousand	and	
to	obtain	an	economic	gain	of	$760	thousand.

The debt service requirements for the revenue/refunding bonds for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Housing and Dining Revenue 
and Refunding Bonds

Student Recreation Center Revenue 
and Refunding Bonds

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest

2014 $2,910,000 $2,393,684  $925,350 

2015 3,035,000 2,384,039 700,000 925,350 

2016 3,145,000 2,259,952 725,000 904,350 

2017 3,285,000 2,121,325 750,000 882,600 

2018 3,430,000 1,976,333 770,000 860,100 

2019-2023 18,910,000 7,411,334 4,230,000 3,914,425 

2024-2028 9,445,000 3,555,693 5,100,000 3,050,000 

2029-2033 4,840,000 1,490,700 6,205,000 1,944,800 

2034-2037 1,115,000 82,510 5,905,000 602,200 

Total 50,115,000 23,675,570  24,385,000 14,009,175 

Unamortized premium/
(discount) 585,329 397,393

Total $50,700,329 $23,675,570 $24,782,393 $14,009,175

14. PLEDGED REVENUES

WWU has pledged certain revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay the principal and interest of 
revenue bonds. The following is a schedule of the pledged revenues and related debt:
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Source of 
Revenue Pledged

Total Future
Revenues Pledged * Description of Debt Purpose of Debt Term of 

Commitment

Proportion of 
Debt Service to 

Pledged Revenues 
(current yr)

Housing and Dining 
revenues, net of oper-
ating expenses

 $73,790,570 
Housing and Dining 
bonds issued in 1998, 
2005, 2006, 2009,2012

Construction and
renovation of student
housing projects

2034 67.8%

Student Recreation 
Center gross 
revenues

$38,394,175 
Student Recreation 
Center
bonds issued in 2012

Construction of the
Student Recreation 
Center

2033 20.5%

* Total future principal and interest payments on debt

15. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Following are the changes in long-term liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:

16. LEASES

WWU leases facilities for off-campus office and educational spaces under a variety of agreements. WWU also 
finances certain equipment through non-cancelable operating leases.  At June 30, 2013, future payments under these 
operating leases are as follows:

6/30/12 Additions/
Amortization Retirements 6/30/13 Current Portion

Bonds and notes payable

Revenue and refunding bonds $78,003,909 $9,743,814 $12,265,000 $75,482,723 $2,910,000

Notes payable 5,778,210 269,908 535,256 5,512,862 551,463

Net pension obligation 5,462,938  2,449,000  150,968 7,760,970 376,000

Total long term liabilities $89,245,057 $12,462,722 $12,951,224 $88,756,555 $3,837,463

6/30/11 Additions/
Amortization

Retirements 6/30/12 Current Portion

Bonds and notes payable

Revenue and refunding bonds $79,873,169 $25,045,740 $26,915,000 $78,003,909 $2,785,000

Notes payable 3,102,629 3,005,000 329,419 5,778,210 469,025

Net pension obligation 4,205,455 1,400,000 142,517 5,462,938 214,000

Total long term liabilities $87,181,253 $29,450,740 $27,386,936 $89,245,057 $3,468,025

Fiscal Year Lease Payment

2014  $551,146 

2015  409,573 

2016  193,770 

2017  102,368 

2018  74,253 

2019-2029  247,762 

Total minimum lease payments  $1,578,872 
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17. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

WWU,	through	the	State	of	Washington,	offers	its	employees	a	Deferred	Compensation	Plan	created	under	Internal	
Revenue	Code	Section	457.	The	plan,	available	to	all	State	employees,	permits	individuals	to	defer	a	portion	of	their	
salary until future years.  The State of Washington administers the plan on behalf of WWU’s employees; WWU does 
not have legal access to the funds.

18. OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CATEGORIES

In	the	Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenses	and	Changes	in	Net	Position,	operating	expenses	are	displayed	by	natural	
classifications which include salaries, employee benefits, goods and services, and other similar categories. 

Operating expenses by functional classification for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Operating Expenses 2013 2012

Instruction $93,857,845 $87,654,779 

Research 4,969,498 4,685,940 

Academic Support 14,911,524 11,224,188 

Student Services 16,470,143 16,574,245 

Institutional Support 19,168,694 17,141,831 

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 42,411,775 39,724,503 

Scholarships and other student aid 16,796,678 15,278,601 

Auxiliary enterprise expenditures 46,329,778 43,234,005 

Total operating expenses $254,915,935 $235,518,092 

19. PENSION PLANS

WWU offers four contributory pension plans:  the 
Washington State Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (PERS) plan, the Washington State Teachers 
Retirement System (TRS), and the Law Enforcement 
Officers’ and Firefighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF) 
and the Western Washington University Retirement 
Plan (WWURP).

The payroll for WWU employees covered by PERS for 
the	year	ended	June	30,	2013	and	2012	is	$32,233,297	
and	$32,271,085;	the	payroll	for	employees	covered	by	
TRS	is	$876,331	and	$885,844;	the	payroll	covered	by	
WWURP	is	$71,497,672	and	$70,767,054;	the	payroll	
for	LEOFF	is	$853,190	and	$781,159,	respectively.		

Western Washington University Retirement Plan 
(WWURP)
 
Plan Description  
The WWURP is a defined contribution single employer 
pension plan with a supplemental payment, when re-

quired.  The plan covers faculty, professional staff, and 
certain	other	employees.		It	is	administered	by	WWU.		
WWU’s Board of Trustees is authorized to establish 
and amend benefit provisions.  During the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2011, the University amended the 
supplemental retirement plan, limiting participation 
to those individuals who were active participants on 
February 28, 2011. Contributions to the plan are invest-
ed in annuity contracts or mutual fund accounts offered 
by one or more fund sponsors.  Benefits from fund 
sponsors are available upon separation or retirement 
at the member’s option.  Employees have at all times a 
100%	vested	interest	in	their	accumulations.

Funding Policy 
Employee contribution rates, which are based on age, 
range	from	5%	to	10%	of	salary.	WWU	matches	the	
employee contributions.  All required employer and em-
ployee contributions have been made.
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The WWURP contributions for the years ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011

Employee $5,906,235 $5,436,281 $5,612,217 

University 5,938,412 5,427,185 5,624,889 

Supplemental Component 
The supplemental payment plan determines a minimum 
retirement benefit goal based upon a one-time calcula-
tion at each employee’s retirement date.  

WWU makes direct payments to qualified retirees 
when the retirement benefit provided by the fund spon-
sor does not meet the benefit goal.

WWU received an actuarial evaluation of the supple-
mental component of the WWURP during fiscal 2013. 
The previous evaluation was performed in 2011. The 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAL) calculat-
ed as of June 30, 2013 and 2011 was 

$17,924,000	and	$10,035,000	respectively,	and	is	amor-
tized over an 11 year period. 

The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of 
$2,449,000	consists	of	amortization	of	the	UAL	
($1,730,000),	normal	cost	(or	current	cost)	($669,000)	
and interest.  The UAL and ARC were established us-
ing the entry age normal cost method.  

The actuarial assumptions included an investment 
rate	of	return	of	4.25%	to	7.25%	and	projected	salary	
increases	of	3.0%.	Approximately	$71,497,672	and	
$70,767,054	of	WWU’s	payroll	were	covered	under	this	
plan during fiscal 2013 and fiscal 2012, respectively.

The following table reflects the activity in the Net Pension Obligation for the year ended June 30, 2013: 

Balance as of June 30, 2011 $4,205,455 

Annual Required Contribution FY12 1,400,000 

Payments to Beneficiaries FY12 (142,517)

Balance as of June 30, 2012 5,462,938 

Annual Required Contribution FY13 2,449,000 

Payments to Beneficiaries FY13 (150,968)

Balance as of June 30, 2013 $7,760,970 

PERS, TRS and LEOFF
 
Plan Description 
WWU contributes to PERS, TRS and LEOFF 
cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pen-
sion plans administered by the State of Washington 
Retirement System.
PERS	I	provides	retirement	and	disability	benefits,	
and minimum benefit increases beginning at age 66 
to eligible non-academic plan members hired prior to 
October	1,	1977.		PERS	II	and	III	provide	retirement	
and disability benefits, and a cost-of-living allowance, to 
eligible non-academic plan members hired on or after 
October	1,	1977.		In	addition,	PERS	III	has	a	defined	

contribution component, which is fully funded by em-
ployee contributions.  PERS defined benefit plan bene-
fits are vested after an employee completes five years of 
eligible service.

TRS	I	provides	retirement	and	disability	benefits,	a	
lump sum death benefit, and minimum benefits in-
creases beginning at age 65 to certain eligible faculty 
hired	prior	to	October	1,	1977.		TRS	II	and	III	provide	
retirement benefits, and cost-of-living allowance to cer-
tain eligible faculty hired on or after October 1, 1977. 
In	addition	TRS	III	has	a	defined	contribution	compo-
nent which is fully funded by employee contributions. 
TRS defined benefit plan benefits are vested after an 
employee completes five years of eligible service.
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LEOFF	II	provides	retirement	benefits	and	a	cost	of	
living allowance for eligible law enforcement officers.  
LEOFF system benefits are vested after an employee 
completes five years of eligible service.

The Washington State Legislature establishes or 
amends benefit provisions for PERS, TRS, and LEOFF.  
Additional information concerning plan descriptions 
and benefit provisions is included in a Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report publicly available from the 
Washington System Department of Retirement System, 
P.O.	Box	48380,	Olympia,	WA,	98504.

Funding Policy 
Each biennium, the Office of the State Actuary, using 
funding methods prescribed by statute, determines actu-
arially required employee and/or employer contribution 
rates for PERS, TRS, and LEOFF plans, except where 
employee contribution rates are set by statute.  All em-
ployers are required to contribute at the level established 
by State law.

The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current year covered payroll at June 30, 2013 are as follow:

Employee University

PERS 

Plan I 6.00% 7.21%

Plan II 4.64% 7.21%

Plan III 5% - 15% 7.21%

TRS 

Plan I 6.00% 8.04% - 8.05%

Plan II 4.69% 8.04% - 8.05%

Plan III 5% - 15% 8.04% - 8.05%

LEOFF 

Plan II 8.46% 8.62%

The required contributions for the years ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011

PERS 

Employee $1,604,739 $1,603,586 $1,466,592

University 2,297,067 2,289,213 1,738,991

TRS 

Employee $31,890 $29,631 $28,122

University 36,137 33,660 26,711

LEOFF 

Employee $72,180 $66,086 $65,066

University 73,545 67,336 66,022

All required employer and employee contributions have been made. 
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20. OThER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
(OPEB)

During the 2008 fiscal year, WWU adopted GASB 
Statement	No.	45,	Accounting and Financial Reporting 
by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than 
Pensions. OPEB are those provided to retired em-
ployees beyond those provided by their pension plans. 
Statement	No.	45	requires	systematic,	accrual-basis	
measurement and recognition of OPEB expense in the 
year in which such benefits are earned by the member. 
Disclosure	information,	as	required	under	GASB	45,	
does not exist at department levels and, as a result, 
the net OPEB obligation is recorded in the State of 
Washington comprehensive annual financial report 
which is available from: 

Office	of	Financial	Management,	Insurance	Building,	
PO	Box	43113,	Olympia,	Washington	98504-3113.

Health care and life insurance programs for employees 
of the State of Washington are administered by the 
Washington State Health Care Authority (HCA).  The 
HCA calculates the premium amounts each year that 
are sufficient to fund the State-wide health and life in-
surance programs on a pay-as-you-go basis.  These costs 
are passed through to individual state agencies based 
upon active employee headcount; the agencies pay the 
premiums for active employees to the HCA.  The agen-
cies may also charge employees for certain higher cost 
options elected by the employees.

State of Washington retirees may elect coverage 
through state health and life insurance plans, for which 
they pay less than the full cost of the benefits, based on 
their age and other demographic factors.

The health care premiums for active employees, which 
are paid by the agency during employees’ working ca-
reers, subsidize the “underpayments” of the retirees. An 
additional factor in the OPEB obligation is a payment 
that is required by the State Legislature to reduce the 
premiums for retirees covered by Medicare (an “explicit 

subsidy”).		For	fiscal	2013,	this	amount	was	$150	per	re-
tiree eligible for parts A and B of Medicare, per month.  
This is also passed through to State agencies via active 
employees rates charged to the agency.

There is no formal State or University plan that under-
lies the subsidy of retiree health and life insurance. An 
actuarial study performed by the Washington Office of 
the State Actuary calculated the total OPEB obligation 
of the State of Washington at January 1, 2011 to be 
$3.5	billion.	

The Actuary calculated the OPEB obligation based on 
individual state employee data, including age, retirement 
eligibility, and length of service.  The probability of an 
employee of a given age and length of service retiring 
and receiving OPEB benefits is based on statewide his-
torical data.  Since sufficient specific employee data and 
other actuarial data are not available at levels below the 
statewide level, such amounts have not been determined 
nor recorded in WWU’s financial statement. 

WWU	was	billed	and	paid	approximately	$17.3	million	
for active and retiree health care expense during fiscal 
2013	and	$18.2	million	in	fiscal	2012.

21. RISK MANAGEMENT

WWU participates in a State of Washington risk man-
agement self-insurance program.  Premiums to the 
State are based on actuarially determined projections 
and include allowances for payments of both outstand-
ing and current liabilities.   WWU self-insures unem-
ployment compensation for all employees.

In	addition,	sufficient	insurance	coverage	for	property	
casualty loss on the residence halls and the Wade King 
Student Recreation Center is maintained in accordance 
with the Housing and Dining System and Wade King 
Student Recreation Center Master Bond Resolutions.

Notes to the Financial Statements



40

Financial Report 2013

22. COMMITMENTS

WWU has been named in several lawsuits. While the final outcome of the lawsuits cannot be predicted with cer-
tainty, it is WWU’s opinion that the ultimate liability will not materially affect the financial statement. 

WWU participates in the State insurance program and is indemnified and will be reimbursed by the State for any 
claims paid related to these lawsuits.

23. JOINT VENTURE

In	fiscal	2010,	WWU	participated	in	the	formation	of	
a not-for-profit corporation titled Western Crossing 
Development Corporation (WCDC).  WCDC was 
formally incorporated pursuant to the articles of in-
corporation dated October 7, 2009 and is a 501(c) 
(3)	corporation	under	the	Internal	Revenue	code	of	
1986, amended.  The five member Board of Directors 
includes a member of WWU Board of Trustees ap-
pointed by WWU Board of Trustees, the President of 
WWU, a member of the Commission of the Port of 

Bellingham appointed by the Commission of the Port, 
the Executive Director of the Port of Bellingham, and 
a fifth board member who was appointed by a major-
ity vote of the other four board members who are not 
affiliated with either entity. The board of directors may 
in the future allow other Washington governments or 
educational institutions to become members under such 
terms and conditions as they determine.  The purpose of 
this joint venture is to help facilitate the timely devel-
opment of new facilities on the Bellingham waterfront.  
This investment is not reflected on WWU’s Statement 
of Net Position.

24. FOUNDATION PLEDGED GIFT RECEIVABLE

In	April	2012,	WWU	received	a	$1.0	million	unconditional	pledged	gift	from	the	Foundation	for	the	purpose	of	
the design and construction of the Multipurpose Field project to be located on WWU’s campus. The pledged gift to 
WWU is recorded at its net present value, with the discount amortized over the 8 year payment schedule using the 
straight line method.  The pledge is expected to be paid as follows:

2013 2012

Operating $3,605,931 $6,661,978

Research 524,672 677,966

Capital projects 9,820,775 16,614,668

Total commitments $13,951,378 $23,954,612

For the year ending June 30,

2014 $100,000

2015 50,000

2016 50,000

2017 150,000

Thereafter 650,000

1,000,000

Less present value discount (0.71%)  (35,686)

Pledged gift receivable from the Foundation, net $964,314
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